
 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE  
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 Monday, June 12, 2023 
 
To provide public comment for City Council meetings, participants should register prior to the meeting. Please 
complete the form linked below to offer public comment at an upcoming City Council meeting. You may provide 
public comment using the following methods: 
 

1. In-person (meetings are held at Seaside City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR) 
2. Via Zoom web conference or telephone (obtain link and register at cityofseaside.us)  
3. Written comments may be submitted using this form, via e-mail to publiccomment@cityofseaside.us or in 

person at City Hall (989 Broadway, Seaside, OR). 
 

If you are providing public comments in person or via Zoom, please keep in mind your comments will be limited to 
three (3) minutes. If your comments are longer than three (3) minutes, please submit your comment in writing and 
utilize your three (3) minutes to summarize your written document. Please review the Public Comment Rules of 
Conduct prior to the meeting.  

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 5:30 PM 
 

1. Discussion of Land Acknowledgment       {30 min} 
      

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 PM 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. PROCLAMATION 

 
a) JUNETEENTH 

 
b) FLAG DAY 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS Members of the public may use this time to provide comments to the City 

Council on items that are not scheduled on this agenda for a public hearing or public comment. Speaking 
time is limited to three minutes. 

 
7. DECLARATION OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
8. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a) PAYMENT OF THE BILLS - $390,632.16 
 

b) APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 22, 2023 
 
 

 

https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
mailto:publiccomment@cityofseaside.us
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/pages/how-connect
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/pages/how-connect


 
 
 

9. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS:  
 

a) SEASIDE LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT 
 

10. CITY OF SEASIDE BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES: None 
 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None 
 

 
12. NEW BUSINESS:  

 
a) LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FULL ON PREMISES – RESTAURANTE RAMOS, LLC, 

1445 S. ROOSEVELT DR. (OWNER: SANTOS RAMOS) 
 
b) APPROVAL: INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

SEASIDE AND SEASIDE RURAL FIRE DISTRICT  
 
c) PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION #4018 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE 

OREGON, DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUE 
SHARING 
 
 OPEN PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING  

 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
 MOTION TO READ BY TITLE ONLY – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
 MOTION TO ADOPT – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
d) APPROVAL: BID LOWER COHO CREEK FISH PASSAGE PROJECT 
 
e) RESOLUTION #4019 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, 

ESTABLISHING THE SEASIDE FIRE & RESCUE AMBULANCE SERVICE FEES 
 

 OPEN PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
 MOTION TO READ BY TITLE ONLY – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
 MOTION TO ADOPT – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
f) RESOLUTION #4020 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, 

AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A FIRE LEVY FUND  
 
 OPEN PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
 MOTION TO READ BY TITLE ONLY – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
 MOTION TO ADOPT – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 
g) RESOLUTION #4021 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, 

AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A TOURISM ACTIVITIES FUND 
 

 OPEN PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
 MOTION TO READ BY TITLE ONLY – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 

 



 
 
 

 MOTION TO ADOPT – ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED 
 

h) PUBLIC HEARING ORDINANCE 2023-04 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, 
OREGON, AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE SEASIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
REGARDING TRANSIENT ROOM TAX (First Reading) (Second Reading Council Discretion)  

  
 OPEN PUBLIC HEARING   
 
 CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING   
 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
 MOTION FOR FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY – ALL IN FAVOR AND 

OPPOSED  
 
 COUNCIL DISCRETION - MOTION FOR SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY – 

ALL IN FAVOR AND OPPOSED  
  

j) APPROVAL: COMMENT ON CHANGES TO NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE 
PROGRAM IN OREGON 

 
k) APPROVAL: LICENSING AGREEMENT FOR A PORTION OF 21ST AVENUE ADJACENT 

TO 2051 N. ROOSEVELT 
 
13. COMMENTS FROM CITY STAFF 
 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE COUNCIL 

 
15. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 192.660 (2) (e) 

REGARDING DELIBERATIONS WITH PERSONS DESIGNATED TO NEGOTIATE REAL 
PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS  

  
16. RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION – COUNCIL ACTION IF ANY REGARDING 

EXECUTIVE SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 192.660 (2) (e) NEGOTIATE REAL 
PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS  
    

17. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
Complete copies of the Current Council meeting Agenda, Packets, and Minutes can be viewed at:  
www.cityofseaside.us.  
 

All meetings other than executive sessions are open to the public. When appropriate, any public member desiring to 
address the Council may be recognized by the presiding officer. Remarks are limited to the question under 
discussion except during public comment. This meeting is handicapped accessible. Please let us know at 503-738-
5511 if you will need any special accommodation to participate in this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cityofseaside.us/


 

                                  CITY OF SEASIDE  

                                        
PROCLAMATION  

 
Whereas, the Emancipation Proclamation, was an executive order issued by President Abraham Lincoln 

on September 22, 1862, effective January 1, 1863, that freed approximately 3.5 million slaves in the Confederate 
states; and 
 

Whereas, while President Abraham Lincoln had officially freed the slaves, enforcement of this order 
became difficult to enforce in areas where there were few Union soldiers. Texas, in particular, remained 
unaffected, as it was geographically isolated from Union troops and thus was the last confederate state to have 
the proclamation announced; and 
 

Whereas, many slave owners moved to Texas looking to not be affected by the enforcement of the 
proclamation. By the end of the Civil War on April 9, 1865, the number of slaves in Texas had increased by tens 
of thousands, despite the proclamation; and 
 

Whereas, on June 19, 1865, Major General Gordon Granger from the Headquarters District of Texas 
in Galveston, with more than 2,000 Union troops, traveled to every county in Texas informing the people that 
all slaves were free; and 
 

Whereas, the Juneteenth celebration was started a year later in Texas to celebrate the importance of 
June 19 with the announcement that slavery had been abolished. It was from this celebration that Juneteenth 
(“June” combined with “nineteenth”) was born; and  
 

Whereas, traditions include public readings of the Emancipation Proclamation, singing traditional 
songs such as "Swing Low, Sweet Chariot" and "Lift Every Voice and Sing", and reading of works by noted 
African-American writers such as Ralph Ellison and Maya Angelou, as well as sharing of slave food delicacies, 
including the barbecue pit, and certain foods that became popular and synonymous with Juneteenth celebrations, 
such as strawberry soda-pop.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Steve Wright, Mayor of the City of Seaside, do hereby proclaim June 19, 2023, 
as a 

CELEBRATION OF JUNETEENTH  
 

and encourage all citizens to join with our neighbors and the African American community to celebrate this 
day. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Seaside to be affixed 
this 12th day June, 2023. 

 
____________________________________ 
STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Swing_Low,_Sweet_Chariot
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lift_Every_Voice_and_Sing
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/African_Americans
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ralph_Ellison
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Maya_Angelou


                                  CITY OF SEASIDE  

                                        
 
 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 

 Whereas, by act of Congress of the United States dated June 14, 1777, the first 
official flag of the United States was adopted; and  
 
 Whereas, by act of Congress dated August 3, 1949, "National Flag Day" was 
designated each year as June 14; and 
 
 Whereas, the Congress has requested the President to issue annually a proclamation 
designating the week in which June 14 occurs as National Flag Week; and  
 

Whereas, Flag Day celebrates our nation's symbol of unity, a democracy in a 
republic, and stands for our country's devotion to freedom, to the rule of all, and to equal 
rights for all; and 

 
Whereas, Americans are a diverse people, but are united by what we believe: that all 

people are created equal; that all deserve to live in freedom; and  
 
 Whereas, we pay our respect to all the veterans who have served the armed forces of 
their country. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I Steve Wright, the Mayor of the City of Seaside, in the State 
of Oregon, do hereby proclaim June 14, 2023, as    
 

FLAG DAY IN SEASIDE, OREGON 
 
and urge all citizens of Seaside to honor our Flag and Nation, on Wednesday, June 14th.  
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Seaside to be affixed this 12th day of June 2023. 
 
 
       

      
 STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 



1 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE CITY COUNCIL 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 
Monday, May 22, 2023  

 

Work Session 5:00 PM 

I. Discussion of 19th Avenue Street Vacation Request 

Community Development Director Flory stated there was a request received from LKL Properties 
to vacate a portion of 19th Avenue from N. Franklin to N. Columbia and is currently undeveloped.  
 

The Applicant LKL Properties explained the proposed street vacation and the plan for 
development of 19th Avenue.   

The City Council discussed the request and gave feedback to the property owners that the City 
Council may be interested in vacating the street if the property owners could find ways to provide 
public parking and public access to the beach and estuary.  
 

II. Discussion on Amendments to Rules of Procedure and Conduct Guidelines for Governing Council 
Members 

No discussion of Amendments to Rules of Procedure and Conduct Guidelines for Governing 
Council Members.   
 

III. Discussion of Current/Future Agenda Items 

No discussion of current/future agenda items.  
 

City Council Meeting 6:00 PM 

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

Council Members P/A 
Steve Wright, Mayor P 
David Posalski, Council President  P 
Tita Montero P 
Tom Horning P 
Randy Frank                             P 
Seth Morrisey P 
Steve Dillard P 

 

Staff Members  
Spencer Kyle, City Manager Jeff Flory, Community Dev. Director 
Jon Rahl, Assistant City Manager Mike Dimmick, Public Works Director 
Kim Jordan, City Recorder  Brian Owen, Convention Center Gen. Mgr. 

 

Visitors in Chambers (attendance sheet) Visitors on Zoom 
Rick Bowers  

 

Nelle Moffit  

Brian and Linda Poggi  

Deanna Mancil  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=49s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=49s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h49s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h49s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h1m15s


2 
 

Tom and Pam Schwenzer  

Pam Bierly  

Linda Iles  

Mike Martin  

Bruce Rosebrock  

Ronald Graham  

Marcus Runkle   

Tyler Evans  

Michael Starr  

Jerry and Man Markle  

Deanna Evans  

Geri Lane  

Mary Blake   

Marilynn Blacketer  

Stephen Warner  

Duane Thompson  

Sam Rudd  

Nathan Smith  

Michael Hinton   

Chris and Jim Kuhn  

Su Coddington  

Michael Conger  

Carrie and Greg Bond  

Nancy Holmes  

David Bailey  

Suzanna Kruger  

Clare Mitchell  
 

 

III. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion: So moved. 
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Morrisey 
Ayes: Wright, Frank, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent:  
0 

Recused: 
0  

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

IV. Proclamations 

A. Pride Month 

Marcus Runkle addressed the City Council regarding Pride Month.   

Councilor Montero read the Proclamation for Pride Month. 
 

V. Public Comments (time is limited to 3 minutes) 
 

Rick Bower addressed the City Council regarding affordable housing.  

Max Justice addressed the City Council regarding the 19th Street Vacation.  

Deanne Mancill addressed the City Council regarding the Necanicum Estuary Park. 

Marilynn Blacketer addressed the City Council regarding the Necanicum Estuary Park. 

Tom Schwenzer addressed the City Council regarding the 19th Street Vacation. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h1m41s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h1m54s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h7m39s


3 
 

Mary Blake addressed the City Council regarding the Necanicum Estuary Park.   

Pam Bierly addressed the City Council regarding the Necanicum Estuary Park. 

David Bailey addressed the City Council regarding the Necanicum Estuary Park. 
 

VI. Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest  
 

Council Members Y/N 
Steve Wright, Mayor Y 
Tom Horning N 
Randy Frank N 
Seth Morrisey Y 
Steve Dillard N 
David Posalski, President N 
Tita Montero N 

 

Councilor Morrisey declared a potential conflict of interest regarding Helping Hands request for 
funding and would recuse himself from voting and discussions. 

Mayor Wright disclosed but did not think it would be a conflict, regarding agenda item 12d, that he 
was the president of the board of directors of a city owned property, leased by the Seaside 
Museum which is under this landscaping contract.  

VII. Consent Agenda 
 

Motion: Move to pay the bills and approve the minutes. 
Moved: Morrisey 
Seconded: Montero 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

VIII. Reports and Presentations 

A. Seaside Civic and Convention Center Annual Report 
 

 

Convention Center General Manager Owen presented the Seaside Civic and Convention Center 
Annual Report. 

T 

IX. City of Seaside Boards, Commissions, and Committees 

A. Vacancy Building Board of Appeals (3 Vacancies) 

There were three vacancies on the Building Board of Appeals. 

B. Vacancy Parks Advisory Committee (3 Vacancies – 3 Term Expirations) 
 

Motion: Move to appoint Mary Blake, William Montero, and Daffne Alvarez to the Parks 
Advisory Committee.  

Moved: Horning 
Seconded: Montero 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero  
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h29m40s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h30m20s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h30m37s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h49m24s


4 
 

 

X. Unfinished Business 
 

A.  Public Hearing Ordinance 2023-03 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Seaside, Oregon, Pursuant to ORS 223.112-223.132, setting a Public Hearing, Extending 
the Term of the Assessment District for Economic Improvement, known as the “Downtown 
Maintenance District”, Repealing Ordinance 2022-05 and all Ordinances in Conflict 

Mayor Wright stated this was for the assessment for the downtown and the rate. Mayor 
Wright opened the public hearing, there were no comments.  
 

Motion: Moved for second reading by title only Ordinance 2023-03. 
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Posalski 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

Motion: Moved seeing no input, or anybody not in favor of this that we read by title only third 
reading Ordinance 2023-03. 

Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Posalski 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

Motion: Moved to adopt. 
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Posalski 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

Roll Call Vote 
 

Steve Wright, Mayor Y 
David Posalski, Council President  Y 
Tita Montero Y 
Tom Horning Y 
Randy Frank                             Y 
Seth Morrisey Y 
Steve Dillard Y 

 

 

XI. New Business 
 

A. Liquor License Application Limited On Premises. Studio 138, 810 Broadway, (Owner: 
Carrie Bond) 
 

Studio 138 Owner Carrie Bond addressed the City Council regarding the liquor license 
application.  
 
 

Motion: Move we approve the liquor license for Studio 138.  
Moved: Morrisey 
Seconded: Frank 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 

  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h50m30s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h54m0s


5 
 

 

B. Approval: Helping Hands Request for Release of Funding. 

Alan Evans addressed the City Council regarding the request for release of funding granted 
to Helping Hands for $25,000.00.  

The City Council discussed the request for the release of the funding that was granted to 
Helping Hands.  

Motion: Move to release the funding to Helping Hands. 
Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Dillard 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Frank, Posalski, 

Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
1 

Passed: 6/0 

 
C. Public Hearing Resolution 4017 – A Resolution of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Amending 

the City of Seaside Building Fees. 
 

Community Development Director Flory explained Resolution 4017 and the amended City 
of Seaside Building Fees.                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

 

Mayor Wright opened the public hearing, there were no comments.  

 

Motion: Move to read Resolution 4017 by title only.  
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Morrisey 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 
 

Motion: Move to adopt Resolution 4017. 
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Morrisey 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 

 
D. Approval: Bid for Landscape Maintenance City of Seaside Facilities. 

 
 

There was one bid received from Nature Helper for the Landscape Maintenance Seaside 
Facilities. 
 

Motion: Move to approve the bid for Landscape Maintenance to Nature’s Helper.  
Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Morrisey 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 

 
E. Approval: City Council Strategic Blueprint 2023 

 
 

City Manager Kyle stated the Coraggio Group drafted the City Council’s strategic blueprint 
for priorities. The goals are to be completed by January 2025 and will be used to develop 
the budget for the next two years.  
 
 

Motion: Move the City of Seaside approve the Strategic Blueprint 2023 as provided in the 
packet. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=1h56m24s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h11m38s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h16m03s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h19m02s


6 
 

Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Montero 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 

  
F. Approval: City of Seaside Branding 

 
 

City Manager Kyle explained the City began the process to update the City business logo 
as part of a comprehensive branding strategy and the goal was to create a logo that 
represented the City. The City Council gave the branding company Lookout direction on a 
preferred design for Tillamook Head. Based on the feedback and direction, Lookout 
prepared options for consideration as outlined in the staff report.   
 
 

The City Council discussed the options outlined in the staff report and made a decision to 
select the right-side logo with the gray.   
 

Motion: Move to approve the right gray Logo. 
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Morrisey 
Ayes: Wright, Horning, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 

 

XII. Comments from City Staff and Partner Organizations 
 

Public Works Director Mike Dimmick updated the City Council on the Highway 101 project.  

Wally Carl, Seaside Resident addressed the homelessness. 

Kerri Lambert, Seaside Downtown Development Association, updated the City Council regarding 
the Wine Walk and Seaside Flower Baskets.  

City Manager Kyle introduced the Library Director, Jennifer Reading.  

Library Director Reading updated the City Council regarding the Seaside Library.  

Assistant City Manager Rahl updated the City Council on the lifeguards and alternate routes for 
the Highway 101 project.  

XIII.   Comments from City Council  
 

Councilor Horning commented on the Estuary Project.  

Councilor Frank updated the City Council regarding the Airport Committee, and a citizen 
complaint regarding litter in Seaside and possible signage.  

Councilor Morrisey commented on the Tourism Advisory Committee grant recipients.  

Councilor Montero commented on touring the Water Treatment Plant and the Seaside Watershed, 
and announced coffee with Councilor Montero on Thursday.  

Council President Posalski commented on visiting Washington DC and meeting with the 
legislative staff on Seaside’s priorities. 

Mayor Wright commented on the Water Quality report 2022 for Seaside. Seaside City Hall will 
host the Chamber of Commerce meeting on May 31, 2023. 
  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h26m16s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h43m41s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h51m30s


7 
 

XIV. City Council recessed into Executive Sessions at 7:57 PM in Accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) 
(e) Regarding Deliberations with Persons Designated to Negotiate Real Property Transactions 

XV. City Council reconvened into Regular Session at 8:57 PM – Council action if any regarding 
Executive Session in Accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (e),  

 

XVI. Adjourn City Council Meeting 8:57 PM.  
 

 
Approved by Council on: _____________________  
 
 
Minutes prepared by: _____________________  

   Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
 
 

____________________________ 
STEVE WRIGHT, Mayor  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h58m1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=2h58m1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BMsgAfeEkyI&list=PLkkeQ2VbA9981C9fKn6jwQBfvuXoqPU-u#t=3h57m57s


Annual Report 
2021 - 2022

Jennifer Reading, Library Director 
Presented to the Seaside City Council
June 12, 2023



Telling Our Story

● Who We Are

● Our Story Through the Numbers*

● Technology Updates

● Community Engagement

*Data retrieved from State Library of Oregon: Public Library Statistics 
https://www.oregon.gov/library/libraries/pages/statistics.aspx 

https://www.oregon.gov/library/libraries/pages/statistics.aspx


Who We Are

Library Staff

● Jennifer Reading, Director

● Josh Moorman, Assistant Director

● Dan Cawley, Materials and Acquisitions

● Marian Rose, Youth Librarian

● Connie Word, Interlibrary Loans

● Alexander Cockrum, Tech Assistant

● Susan Park, Front Desk

● Anna Rider, Front Desk

● Barbara Dilley, WOW Outreach

● Jessica Carmen
● Genesis Kelley
● Austin Smith
● Joyce Balint
● Omar Yousef
● Dylan Millirin

● Carol Greco
● Dan Hamilton
● Joyce Hunt
● Linda Bjornstad
● Mikah Whittaker
● Hyrum Shakespear

Library Volunteers (2021 - 2022)



Library Boards and Committees (2021 - 2022)
● Library Advisory Board

○ Tess Ratty (Chair)
○ Kathleen Teeple
○ Eve Marx
○ Cheryl Adamscheck
○ Meagan Hughes

● Friends of the Library
○ Roni Rose (President)
○ Nancy Zenk (Vice 

President)
○ Hugh Kerwin
○ Nancy Taggard
○ Pat Lehman
○ Violet Schad

● Library Art Committee
○ Tess Ratty
○ Nancy Berry
○ Linda Wyss
○ Josh Moorman
○ Esther Moberg

● Libraries ROCC
○ Jess Jacobsen

■ Outreach 
Coordinator

○ Esther Moberg
○ Kelly Knudsen
○ Jimmy Pearson
○ Jane Tucker

● Library Foundation 
○ Jeremy Rust (Chair)
○ Melissa Ousley
○ Cristine Shade
○ Jim Shipley
○ Leah Griffith
○ Teresa Simplot
○ James Beasley



Telling Our Story Through the Numbers



Telling Our Story Through the Numbers



Telling Our Story Through the Numbers







Technology Updates

● Migrated to a new Integrated Library 
System (ILS) at the end of May 2022

● Added the ability to print wirelessly 
● Added a print release station
● Launched a new library website design 

December 1, 2021
● Added StackMap functionality to the 

catalog



Community Engagement

● Programming

○ Outreach to the community was minimal due 

to Covid restrictions

● NW Library Cooperative

● Art Shows



Programming by the Numbers 

● Kids & Families (0 - 11)

○ 1,804 people attended a total of 65 programs

● Teens (12 - 18)

○ 225 people attended a total of 43 programs

● Adults (19+)

○ 112 people attended a total of 11 programs

Average of 18 people per program overall



Summer Reading Program 2022

● 320 Kids & Teens registered

● 2,239 Hours Read

● 250 Take & Make Kits



NW Library Cooperative

● Share a library catalog with Astoria 

and Warrenton

● Move items around the county 

with a courier to better serve our 

patrons

● Circulation policies are aligned



Seaside Library Art Exhibits 2021-2022

● Quilts of Many Colors  (Sept/Nov 2021)

● Art Show Retrospective (Feb/Apr 2022)

● Seaside High School Art Show (May 2022)

● Kelly Grothe Photography (June/Aug 2022) 

Double Take – Charcoal Paintings by Lucca Ettienne (Dec/Jan 2021-22)



Thank you!



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Page | 1  

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 

Author:  Kim Jordan, City Recorder  
Department:   Business Office 
Subject:  Vacancy – Convention Center Commission  
Date:   September 26, 2022 
Type of Item:  Information City Council  

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
Department:  City Manager’s Office 
Subject: Liquor License Application   
Type of Item:  Approval  

Introduction: 
The city has received the liquor license application from Restaurante Ramos, LLC.  
 

Background: 
Restaurante Ramos is a Mexican, Guatemalan restaurant.   

 
Department Review: 
Restaurante Ramos is located at 1445 S. Roosevelt in Seaside. The owner Santos Ramos has applied for a 
Full-on premises liquor license. This is for a new liquor license.     
 
A Full on-premises license implies the company may sell wine, malt beverages, cider and distilled liquor.  
The Police Department has reviewed the business and applicants applying for the liquor license and has 
no concerns with the application. 
 

Budget Impact: 
None 

 
Requested Action: 
“I move to recommend approval of the Liquor License Application for Restaurante Ramos.” 

 
Alternatives: 
The City Council, after consideration, may determine to make a favorable, unfavorable, conditionally 
favorable or no recommendation to the OLCC. If the City Council makes an unfavorable or conditionally 
favorable recommendation to the OLCC regarding any application for liquor license, the 
recommendation will be based on a finding that one or more of the following conditions exist: 

1.  There is a history or pattern of illegal or disorderly activity on the premises. 
 
2.  There have been disturbances and/or other problems (such as fights, altercations, drug dealing by 
patrons, furnishing alcohol to minors by patrons, public drunkenness, alcohol related litter, etc.) related 
to the exercise of the applicant’s alcohol license privilege and the applicant has failed to take reasonable 
and timely corrective action when notified of these problems by the police or the OLCC. 
 
3.  There is a continuing problem of noise from this business disturbing neighbors. 
 
4.  The applicant would be a poor risk for compliance with liquor laws, as indicated by a felony 
conviction, which reflects on the applicant’s ability to be a responsible liquor licensee. 
 
5.  The applicant would be a poor risk for compliance with liquor laws, as indicated by a failure to comply 
with liquor laws. 

 
6.  The applicant has a history of abusing alcohol or other controlled substances and would be a poor 
risk for compliance with liquor laws. 



Page | 2  
 

 
7.  The applicant has made an intentional and materially false statement about a matter that reflects on 
the applicant’s ability to comply with the State’s liquor laws. 

 
8.  An unlicensable person or a party not named as applicant has an ownership interest in the business 
to be licensed. 

 
9.  The applicant has failed to operate as originally proposed to the City Council, the original proposal 
having been a deciding factor in the Council’s favorable recommendation to the OLCC. 

 
10.  The applicant has expanded the boundaries of the licensed premises to areas not originally 
considered by the Council and without City and OLCC approval. 

 
11.  The business is located within 500 feet of a school, childcare facility, church, hospital, nursing or 
convalescent care facility, a park or child-oriented recreation facility, or an alcohol and other drug 
treatment facility and there is evidence that the business will adversely impact the facility. 
 

Attachments: 
1. Seaside Police Department Recommendation 
 



Seaside Police Department 

Working Together We Can Make A Difference 

 

 

 

May 16, 2023 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Josh Gregory, Detective Sergeant 
 
SUBJECT: Restaurante Ramos, LLC   
 
 
The Seaside Police Department has reviewed the liquor application for 
Restaurante Ramos - formerly Viva Tijuana Mexican Cuisine and Mazatlán prior 
to that - located at 1445 S. Roosevelt, Seaside, OR. This is a request for a New 
Outlet, full-on premise, commercial license.  
 
There is one listed owner: Santos Ramos. A limited background was performed 
on Ramos. No disqualifying information was found. I performed an in-house 
search on the premise and found no disqualifying incidents at the location.  
 
I did not find any disqualifying information or reason to deny this application.  
 
If you have any additional questions, please let me know. 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Spencer Kyle, City Manager 
Department:  City Manager 
Subject: Rural Fire District Intergovernmental Agreement 
Type of Item: Approval 

Introduction: 
The City of Seaside (City) and the Seaside Rural Fire District (District) are seeking approval of a new 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for the provisions of fire services within the Rural Fire District’s 
borders.  
 

Background: 
The City of Seaside Fire Department provides fire services to the Seaside Rural Fire District. See the area 
in orange on the map below. The district has no fire staff nor equipment. The City has always provided 
services to this area as it is generally within the City’s urban growth boundary or in close proximity to 
the City. Most recently, the City and District operated under an IGA from 2018-2020. Both entities have 
been operating as usual but without a current agreement.  
 

 



 
 

  

 

Department Review: 
In the past, the agreement has spelled out the amount that the District would pay the City for services. 
In general, the District was turning over most of their property taxes collected. One of the problems with 
previous agreements has been that any time the City annexes part of the District into the City, those 
property taxes were now being collected by the City and not the District. This meant that the amount 
due to the City per the agreement was almost always incorrect or outdated. The new agreement fixes 
this problem by stating that the District will turn over all property taxes collected, less $1,000 for 
administrative expenses of the district. We have also extended the agreement for two, five-year terms. 
The agreement may be terminated by either party with one year’s notice.  
 
The City Attorney has reviewed and approved the attached IGA document.  
 

Budget Impact: 
The proposed FY 2023-24 budget anticipates that the City will collect $38,130 from the District.  
 

Requested Action: 
If a Councilor is ready to make a motion, they would state: 
 
“I move to approve the IGA for Fire Services between the City of Seaside and the Seaside Rural Fire 
District.” 
 

Alternatives: 
The City could consider not providing these services; however, there would be severe consequences to 
the properties within the Fire District. Any change in operations should only be considered after 
significant discussions.  
 

Attachments: 

1. Intergovernmental Agreement Relating To Fire Services 
 



Fire Services IGA   
City of Seaside and Seaside Rural Fire District  Page 1 of 5 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
RELATING TO FIRE SERVICES 

 
THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between the City of Seaside, an Oregon municipal corporation ("City"), and Seaside Rural 
Fire District, a rural fire protection district ("District"), each individually a “Party” and 
collectively the “Parties.” 

 
WHEREAS, authority is conferred upon local governments under ORS 190.010 to enter 

into agreements for the performance of any and all functions and activities that a party to the 
agreement, its officers or agencies have authority to perform; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to pay the City to provide fire protection and emergency 

services within the District’s boundaries, as depicted in Exhibit A and as may be amended from 
time to time (the “Service Area”). 

 

AGREEMENT 
 

I. Fire Protection and Emergency Services  
 
 A.  The City shall provide fire and emergency services including but not limited 
to fire suppression, fire prevention education, emergency medical services, hazardous 
materials incident response, technical rescue, and code enforcement to the Service Area. 
The level of service provided, manner in which services are provided, and all other aspects 
of service delivery shall be in the City’s sole discretion and control.  
 
 B. The City is responsible for planning, constructing, and maintaining fire and 
emergency service facilities and equipment, and for the provision of services including all 
costs associated with providing such services. 
 
 C. The District agrees to adopt the Fire Code as set forth in Code of Seaside 
Section 94.01 no later than August 1, 2023 and the District grants the City the authority to 
enforce the Fire Code within the Service Area. The governing body of the District shall 
adopt any future amendments to the Fire Code that are enacted by the City within sixty 
(60) calendar days of such enactment.  Copies of City’s Fire Code shall be filed with the 
Office of the State Fire Marshal. 
 
 D. The District shall assess taxes within the Service Area at the maximum rate 
authorized by law and shall pay the City the annual tax revenue it collects less one 
thousand dollars ($1,000) per tax year to capture administrative costs to collect the tax and 
remit payment. All tax amounts collected shall be remitted to the City within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt by the District. 
 

II. Term 



Fire Services IGA   
City of Seaside and Seaside Rural Fire District  Page 2 of 5 

 
This Agreement shall take effect on July 1, 2023 (“Effective Date”), and shall remain in 
effect for five (5) years until June 30, 2028 unless terminated as provided in paragraph VII 
of this Agreement.  On July 1, 2028 this Agreement shall renew automatically for one (1) 
subsequent five (5) year term unless terminated early pursuant to paragraph VIII of this 
Agreement. 
 

III. Waiver 
 
The failure of either Party to enforce any provision under this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver by it of any other provision. 
 

IV. Compliance with Laws 
 
The Parties will comply with all applicable laws in the performance of their obligations 
under this Agreement. 
 

V. Hold Harmless and Indemnification 
 
This Agreement is for the benefit of the Parties only. Each Party agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless the other Party, and its officers, employees, and agents, from and against all 
claims, demands and causes of actions and suits of any kind or nature for personal injury, 
death or damage to property on account of or arising out of services performed, the 
omissions of services or in any way resulting from the negligent or wrongful acts or 
omissions of the indemnifying Party and its officers, employees and agents. To the extent 
applicable, the above indemnification is subject to and shall not exceed the limits of 
liability of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 through 30.300). In addition, each Party 
shall be solely responsible for any contract claims, delay damages or similar items arising 
from or caused by the action or inaction of the Party under this Agreement.  Each Party 
shall give the other Party prompt written notice of any action or suit filed or any claim 
made against that Party that may result in ligation in any way related to this Agreement. 
Each Party retains the right, in its discretion, to defend any action with counsel of its 
choosing. 
 
VI. Insurance 

 
City shall maintain insurance levels or self-insurance in accordance with ORS 30.282, for 
the duration of this Agreement at levels necessary to protect against public body liability as 
specified in ORS 30.269 through 30.274. 
 
VII. Dispute Resolution 
 
The Parties agree to make a good faith effort to informally resolve any disputes regarding 
this Agreement or its terms.  Any dispute that cannot be resolved by the designated 



Fire Services IGA   
City of Seaside and Seaside Rural Fire District  Page 3 of 5 

representatives of the Parties will be presented to the governing bodies of each Party for 
consideration.   In the event that such disputes are not resolved informally through either 
of these processes, the Parties agree to engage in mediation of the dispute by a mutually 
agreeable mediator.  If the Parties are not able to agree on a mediator, the mediator will 
be appointed by a judge of the Marion County Circuit Court.  If the Parties are unable to 
resolve the dispute through mediation, each Party retains and is free to exercise any 
remedy available to it under applicable law. 
 

VIII. Modification and Termination 
 
Upon request of either Party, the Parties to this Agreement shall meet within 30 days of 
such request for purposes of reviewing the terms of this Agreement. This Agreement may 
be modified only by mutual agreement of the Parties. Any modification to this agreement 
shall be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each Party hereto. 
 
Either Party may terminate this Agreement for convenience with one (1) year written 
notice to the other Party. 
 
IX. Entire Agreement; Amendments 

 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties on the subject enumerated 
herein. An addition or modification of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be 
effective unless it is in writing and acknowledged by the authorized signature of each Party.   
 

X. Laws of Oregon 
 
The Parties shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the handling and 
expenditure of public funds. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. 

 
XI. Default 

 
Either Party shall be deemed to be in default if it fails to comply with any provisions of this 
Agreement. The non-defaulting Party shall provide the other Party with written notice of 
default and allow thirty (30) calendar days within which to cure the defect. If the defect is 
not cured within thirty (30) calendar days, the non-defaulting Party may terminate this 
Agreement effective upon written notice thereof to the other Party, or upon such other 
date as may be set forth in said notice. 

 
XII. Notices 
 
All notices required or allowed of one Party to the other shall be deemed given when sent 
to the Parties at the following addresses: 
 



Fire Services IGA   
City of Seaside and Seaside Rural Fire District  Page 4 of 5 

For City:  City Manager  
  City of Seaside 
  989 Broadway 
  Seaside, OR 97138 
 
For District: Chair 
  Seaside Rural Fire District  
  150 S Lincoln St 

Seaside, OR 97138 
 
 
XIII. Authority to Enter Into Agreement 
 
The signatories, by affixing their signatures hereto, personally certify that they are 
authorized to do so by the Charter, Ordinances, and/or governing body of the respective 
governmental entity for which they are executing this Agreement, and that their signatures 
shall cause this Agreement to be binding upon such Party. 
 
 
For City:       For District: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
By:_____________________________  By:_____________________________ 
Title:____________________________  Title:____________________________ 
Date:_______________    Date:_______________ 
  



Fire Services IGA   
City of Seaside and Seaside Rural Fire District  Page 5 of 5 

Exhibit A 
Map of Seaside Rural District (in orange) 

 

 
 



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Zach Fleck, Finance Director 
Department:  Business office 
Subject: State Revenue Sharing 
Type of Item: Resolution 

Introduction: 
The City of Seaside annually approves a Resolution to receive funds from the Oregon Department of 
Revenue for State Revenue Sharing. 
 

Background: 
The City of Seaside has received State Revenue Sharing annually from the State of Oregon. The funds are 
generated from gas tax, liquor revenue, marijuana tax revenue, cigarette tax, and 911 tax revenue which 
is allocated to the budget for public safety.  
 

Department Review:  
A share of certain revenues of Oregon shall be apportioned among and distributed to the cities of this 
state for general purposes as provided in this section. The officer responsible for distributing funds to 
cities under this section shall distribute the funds for a fiscal year beginning on July 1 only if the officer is 
satisfied that the city: 
 
a) Elects to receive distributions under this section for the fiscal year. 
 
b) Holds at least one public hearing, after adequate public notice, at which citizens have the 
opportunity to provide written and oral comment to the authority responsible for approving the 
proposed budget of the city for the fiscal year on the possible uses of the distributions, including offset 
against property tax levies by the city for the fiscal year, and certifies its compliance with this paragraph 
to the Oregon Department of Administrative Services not later than July 31 of the fiscal year; 
 
c) Holds at least one public hearing, after adequate public notice, at which citizens have the 
opportunity to provide written and oral comment to, and ask questions of, the authority responsible for 
adopting the budget of the city for the fiscal year on the proposed use of the distributions in relation to 
the entire budget of the city for the fiscal year, including possible offset of the distributions against 
property tax levies by the city for the fiscal year, and certifies its compliance with this paragraph to the 
Oregon Department of Administrative Services not later than July 31 of the fiscal year; and 
 
d) Levied a property tax for the year preceding the year in which revenue sharing is due under ORS 
471.810 (Distribution of available moneys in Oregon Liquor and Cannabis Commission Account) and this 
section. 

 
Budget Impact: 
There are no expenses associated with this item, however the State of Oregon has shared roughly 
$115,000 with the City for these expenses in each of the past three years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_471.810
https://oregon.public.law/statutes/ors_471.810


 
 

Requested Action: 
If the City Council is ready to approve the attached resolution, a City Councilor would make the 
following motion: 
 
“I move to read Resolution #4018 by title only.”  
 
 
followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution #4018.” 

 
Alternatives: 
The City Council could choose to forgo the state revenue sharing. This would cost the City $120,000 in 
lost revenue.  
 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution #4018  
 



RESOLUTION #4018 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON,  
DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE  

REVENUE SHARING 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SEASIDE: 
 
SECTION 1.  Pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City hereby elects to receive State Revenue 
Sharing for fiscal year 2023 - 2024. 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Seaside this        day of              , 2023. 
 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor and APPROVED by the Mayor on this        day of              
              , 2023. 
 
 
 
             
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 
 
I certify that a public hearing before the Seaside Budget Committee was held on  
May 25, 2023, and a public hearing before the Seaside City Council was held on  
June 12, 2023, giving citizens an opportunity to comment on the use of State Revenue 
Sharing. 
 
 
 
 
             
      Spencer Kyle, City Manager 
 
 
       
          
       Date 



Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author:  Michael Dimmick, Public Works Director 
Department: Public Works  
Subject: Bid - COHO Creek Culvert Replacement Project 
Type of Item:   Approval 

 
 
Introduction: 
The City is seeking approval of the COHO Creek Culvert Replacement project.  
 
Background: 
COHO Creek, a tributary to the Neawanna Creek, runs beneath Wahanna Road through a culvert located 
adjacent to Wahanna Ballfields. The existing corrugated steel culvert has significant damage due to rust 
and age and is in dire need of replacement. Former Executive Director of the Necanicum Watershed 
Council, Melyssa Graeper, initiated the project in 2016; however, the project was suspended due to 
funding, COVID-19, and material shortages. In 2022, the new Executive Director of the Necanicum 
Watershed Council, Noah Dolinajec, spoke to agencies interested in the project and placed the project 
back into the grants cycle and was successful in obtaining funding for the project.  
 
The City of Seaside and the Necanicum Watershed Council have been working with partners at the 
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife, Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board, and The Pacific 
Lamprey Foundation for the last seven years to secure funding for this project, which will enhance fish 
passage and help control flooding within our Necanicum River waterways. 
 
Department Review: 
The City advertise a request for bids and received two submissions for this project. The low bidder is 
Lyda Excavating, Inc., in the amount of $464,150.00. Engineering and Public Works Staff have reviewed 
the bid submissions and checked references and believe this firm is a responisble bidder. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Funding for this project in being provided by grants through the Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife, 
The Pacific Lamprey Foundation, Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board, and the Necanicum 
Watershed Council. To date, a total of $627,039.00 in grant funds have been obtained for this project. 
Additional funds for the utility relocation are provided through the City of Seaside 2023-2024 Budget 
process. 
 
Recommendation: 
“I move to award the contract for the COHO Creek Culvert Replacement project to Lyda Excavating, Inc., 
in the amount of $464,150.00.”  
 
Alternatives: 
Failure to replace this culvert will result in the future collapse of the roadway. The only alternative 
would be to postpone the project and for the Ctiy to fund the project on our own.  
 
Attachments: 

1.  Bid Results 

 
Staff and Key Contacts: 
Michael Dimmick, Public Works Director, mdimmick@cityofseaside.us 
 

 

mailto:mdimmick@cityofseaside.us






































































 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 

Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Joey Daniels – Fire Chief 
Department:   Seaside Fire & Rescue 
Subject:  Ambulance Service Fees  
Type of Item:  Resolution 

Introduction: 
Staff has begun the process of acquiring the apparatus (ambulance) and tools necessary to offer 
ambulance service to those in the Seaside response area, as well as those requested by mutual aid.  
This is after the direction from City Council to move forward with the ambulance service. The resolution 
would approve the billing of services provided.  
 

Background: 
On the heels of the Coronavirus Pandemic – and even leading up to the beginning of the pandemic, 
there has been a nationwide shortage of paramedic services, including here in Clatsop County. Because 
of staffing shortages, and difficulty filling shifts, fewer ambulances are on the road in Clatsop County. 
This equates to greater stress on the system and the potential for delayed response to calls where a 
paramedic and/or transport services are needed. Seaside has experienced this firsthand, with crews 
unable to leave a medical scene (which they were called to help with) because the ambulance service is 
unable to make it there in adequate time.   
 
During the goal-setting meetings with City Council in January 2023, it was discussed that the fire 
department was looking into operating an ambulance and offering transporting services when Medix is 
delayed, and sufficient staffing is available. This service is needed to cut down our out-of-service times 
and times on scene while waiting for a delayed ambulance from Medix. Following a brief meeting with 
Medix in January to discuss the possibility of this action, we have received a letter of support from the 
owner of Medix to help them as needed. Subsequently, and should we begin this acquisition process, 
Medix has gone on to request us to respond to calls in other jurisdictions, as we are available when their 
system is over capacity. 
 
At the City Council meeting May 7, 2023, there were discussions about moving forward to provide 
ambulance services. The City Council provided the support to move forward with purchasing a used 
ambulance and equipment.  
 
 

Department Review: 
Seaside Fire & Rescue has started acquisition of used ambulance and equipment to start the 
ambulance transport service. The department anticipates having the ambulance in service by July 1, 
2023. At this time Seaside Fire & Rescue request City Council approve a resolution in order to start 
billing for services provided.  
 
This fee resolution is based on the same fees that Medix Ambulance charges when they transport. We 
have also added fees for motor vehicle accidents and special event requests when we are needed for 



 

Page | 2  
 

standby. It also states how we are using the 2023 Oregon State Mobilization Plan for the hourly cost for 
apparatus. 
 

Budget Impact: 
With this resolution we are expecting to generate revenue to offset the expenses that are going to be 
incurred with the ambulance being in service.  
 

Requested Action: 
If the City Council is ready to approve the attached resolution, a City Councilor would make the 
following motion: 
 
“I move to read Resolution #4019 by title only.”  
 
followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution #4019” 
 

Alternatives: 
The City Council could choose not to proceed with the resolution and Seaside Fire & Rescue would not 
bill for the service provided and the cost would not be recouped.  
 

Attachments: 
Resolution #4019 and Exhibit ‘A’ 
  
 

Staff and/or Key Contacts: 
Joey Daniels – Fire Chief 
David Rankin – Division Chief  
 



RESOLUTION #4019 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, ESTABLISHING  
SEASIDE FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE FEES 

 
Seaside Fire & Rescue will be establishing the operations of ambulance service and offering 
transporting services when Medix is delayed or request assistance, and sufficient staffing is 
available. Seaside Fire & Rescue discussed the need for an additional ambulance service. Due 
to the demands of the last several years and the increase in the on-scene times for medical 
calls there is a need to immediately add an ambulance to Seaside Fire & Rescue to transport. 
 
WHEREAS, the Seaside Fire & Rescue propose to operate an ambulance service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council reviews and authorizes the Seaside Fire & Rescue service fees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SEASIDE: 
 
SECTION 1. In accordance with Chapter 34.03 of the Seaside Code of Ordinances, fees for City Services 
are adopted as follows: 
 
SECTION 2. Seaside Fire & Rescue, fees described in Exhibit ‘A’ be established effective July 1, 2023, 
for services provided by the Seaside Fire & Rescue ambulance service.  
 
SECTION 3. Seaside Fire & Rescue will honor the ambulance membership offered by Medix 
Ambulance Service; Lifeguard. 
 
SECTION 4. Seaside Fire & Rescue shall provide emergency medical care at the advanced life support 
level on ambulance so long as resources allow.  
 
SECTION 5. Seaside Fire & Rescue shall reserve the right to accept assignment of payment received 
from any third-party payer. 
 
SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective June 12, 2023, upon approval of the resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED a schedule of fees, unless otherwise provided by law, is established as 
follows in exhibit ‘A’. 
 
 
PASSED by the Council of the City of Seaside this        day of               , 2023. 
 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor and APPROVED by the Mayor this       day of               , 2023. 
 
 
            
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
      
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

Base Rate  $1,700.00 

Mileage (per loaded mile) $25.00 

MVA Response $300.00 

Structural Engine $100.00 

Brush Truck $60.00 

Water Tender $80.00 

Ariel/Tiller $150.00 

Command  $45.00 

Rescue Vehicle $45.00 

Ambulance Stand By $100.00 per hour 

Personnel Stand By Current Benefited Rate 
 

1. Base Rate: The base rate fee covers all medical supplies, equipment, procedures, and services associated with pre-
hospital medical care and ambulance transportation. Mileage and other services are billed in excess of the base rate. 
One base rate fee is charged for each patient transported. 
 

2. Mileage: A mileage fee is charged for each patient who is transported. Mileage is based on "loaded miles" from the 
point of patient origin to destination and is computed to the nearest whole mile.  

 
3.       MVA Response: Base rate for responding to MVAs, plus the hourly rate for each apparatus and all personnel 

responding. This fee will be billed to each vehicle involved. 
 

4.      Structural Engine/Brush truck/ Water Tender/ Ariel-Tiller/ Command/Rescue: Fees charged when an additional 
Fire Department unit assists in performing fire suppression activities, extrication, or rescue services. **Billed at 2023 
OSFM Mobilization Rates. 

 
5. Stand-by Coverage (unit): The stand-by coverage unit fee is charged to individuals and organizations that are 

required or request apparatus be dedicated or stand-by for an event.  
 

6. Stand-by Coverage (Personnel): The stand-by coverage Personnel fee is charged to individuals and organizations 
that are required or request apparatus or personnel for an event. The compliment of crew will be determined by Fire 
Department Chief or his designee.  



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 

Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author:  Zach Fleck; Finance Director 
Department:   Finance 
Subject:  Creation of Fire Equipment Fund (23)  
Type of Item:  Resolution 

Introduction: 
Staff are recommending approval for a new Fire Equipment Fund.  
 

Background: 
In November of 2022, Seaside voters approved a new fire levy to replace the current fire levy, which 
expires in June of 2023.  
 

Department Review: 
Given that the fire levy is specific on the items that funds can be spent on, the most efficient way to 
accomplish this in the current financial system is to create a new fund, Fire Equipment (23) – (Fund 223), 
to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the levy.  
 
An interfund loan will be processed in the amount of $1,250,000 at 0% interest from the Convention 
Center Fund so that Seaside can purchase a new fire training tower and put a down payment on new fire 
apparatus. Future collections in the Fire Levy fund will be used to pay back this loan over a period of no 
more than five years.  
 
This fund was included as part of the Seaside budgeting process this year, so no alterations are needed 
to the recommended budget that was approved by the Budget Committee.  
 

Budget Impact: 
There is no budget impact to this item.  
 

Alternatives: 
We could account for these items within the Public Safety fund, but additional steps would be required 
to ensure that funds are expended in the ways that the voters approved.  
 

Requested Action: 
If the Seaside City Council is ready to create the Fire Equipment Fund, for the attached resolution, a 
Councilor would make the following motion: 
 
“I move to read Resolution #4020 by title only.”  
 
followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution #4020” 

 
Attachments: 
Resolution 4020 – Creating Fire Equipment (23) Fund 

 
Staff and/or Key Contacts: 
Zach Fleck – Finance Director 
Spencer Kyle – City Manager 
 



RESOLUTION # 4020 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, 
AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A FIRE LEVY FUND 

WHEREAS, the City of Seaside will receive voter-approved funding for the 
Seaside Fire Department, and 

WHEREAS, the segregation of these funds will provide for a more accurate picture 
of when and how these funds are used, and 

WHEREAS, accounting for these funds will be critical to the proper handling of 
these funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Seaside City Council hereby creates the Fire Equipment (23) Fund 
(223) to be used to account for spending of funds associated with the 2022-2027 Fire 
Levy.  

PASSED by the Council of the City of Seaside this         day of                   , 2023. 
 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor and APPROVED by the Mayor this          day of                   ,  
2023. 
 
 
      

 
STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 

Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author:  Zach Fleck; Finance Director 
Department:   Finance 
Subject:  Creation of Tourism Activity Fund  
Type of Item:  Resolution 

Introduction: 
Staff are recommending approval for a new Tourism Activity Fund.  
 

Background: 
Tourism is a major economic driver for the City of Seaside. As such, Seaside has had an active tax or fee 
on overnight stays in the City dating back to the 1970’s. These fees have provided a significant revenue 
source for the City and has allowed Seaside to expand and enhance its tourist-related offerings for the 
better part of a half of a century.  
 
In 2003, the State of Oregon established their own Transient Lodging Tax (TLT) of 1 percent in order to 
fund an initiative called Travel Oregon. At that time, the state also passed a law that required local 
governments with existing Transient Lodging Taxes to maintain the percentage that was being used to 
promote tourism and tourism-related facilities. In addition to this, the State required that any new or 
increased local TLT’s use at least 70 percent of the revenue to support tourism and tourist-related 
facilities in their locality.  
 

Department Review: 
Currently, TLT funds are dispersed in the following manner:  

 16.08%: Visitor's Bureau 
 15.12%: Public Safety 

o .8% Must be allocated to lifeguards 
 56.8%: Convention Center 

o Priority: 
 1st: Payment of outstanding debts 
 2nd: maintaining, upgrading, expansion of the CC building, property, and 

equipment 
 3rd: general operations 

 4.08%: Convention Center capital improvement fund 
 2.32%: Capital Improvement and maintenance fund 
 2.48%: Public Works for maintenance and operation of tourist related facilities 
 1.92%: Prom Improvement fund 
 1.2%: Emergency Readiness fund 

 
This disbursement methodology has created large balances in some funds, where the funding could be 
better allocated elsewhere. Concurrent to this resolution, we will request that we amend the Seaside 
City code to allow for more flexibility in funding allocation, while still adhering to Oregon State 
requirements related to tourism funds.  
 
 
 



Page | 2  
 

 
The TLT funds are dispersed to the above funds and department as they are received. Staff recommends 
that City Council create a Tourism Activity Fund (121) for the receipt of TLT funds. This fund will collect 
all hotel transient lodging taxes and transfer them out to debt, capital, and operational funds as needed.  
 
The Tourism Activity Fund (121) was included in the recommended budget from the Seaside Budget 
Committee, so no supplemental budget will be required.  
 

Budget Impact: 
This will not result in a direct budget impact, as the City will continue to receive these funds. The TLT 
funds will just be received into a different fund before disbursement.  
 

Requested Action: 
If the Seaside City Council is ready to approve the attached resolution and create the Tourism Activity 
Fund, a City Councilor would make the following motion: 
 
“I move to read Resolution #4021 by title only.”  
 
followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution #4021” 
 

Alternatives: 
The City could maintain the status quo. 
 

Attachments: 
Resolution 4021 – Creating Tourism Activity Fund 
 

Staff and/or Key Contacts: 
Zach Fleck – Finance Director 
Spencer Kyle – City Manager 
 



RESOLUTION # 4021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, 
AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF A TOURISM ACTIVITY FUND  

WHEREAS, the City of Seaside receives transient room tax revenue that is 
restricted by the State of Oregon in how it can be expended, and 

WHEREAS, the segregation of these funds will provide for a more accurate picture 
of when and how these funds are used, and 

WHEREAS, accounting for these funds will be critical to the proper handling of 
these funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Seaside City Council hereby creates the Tourism Activity Fund 
(121) to be used to account for the spending of funds associated with hotel transient 
room taxes.   

PASSED by the Council of the City of Seaside this         day of                   , 2023. 
 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor and APPROVED by the Mayor this          day of                   ,  
2023. 
 
 
     

 
STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST:   
 
 
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Zach Fleck, Finance Director 
Department:  Finance 
Subject: Transient Room Tax 
Type of Item: Public Hearing and Ordinance 

Introduction: 
Ordinance No. 2023-04 is an ordinance amending Chapter 32 of the code of ordinances directing 
Transient Lodging Taxes to (TLT) the newly created Tourism Activity Fund.   
 

Background: 
The City Council created the Transient Room Tax Ordinance in 1973 which collects and allocates the tax 
revenue received from lodging businesses in the City of Seaside. The previous amendment to the 
ordinance was in 2016 which changed the distribution of the transient room tax collected.  
 

Department Review:  
The City Council approves all amendments to city ordinances. The amendment to the Transient Room 
Tax Ordinance Chapter 32.08 amends: 

1. The Penalties and interest to allow for the City of Seaside finance department to charge for 
attorney fees generated for the failure of remitting taxes that were imposed.  

2. The distribution of all room tax. The room tax was previously distributed to city departments 
and the amendment will now allow the funds to be allocated to the Tourism Activity Fund and 
then transfer those funds based on the operational needs of the departments in accordance 
with state laws regulating their use.  

 

Budget Impact: 
The State allows cities to retain 30% of TLT for use in the general fund. Since 2016, the city has been 
allocating only 18% of TLT funds to the general fund. The new ordinance will reduce the amount 
disbursed to specific departments; however, those previous disbursements were often disbursed more 
than the tourism related departments needed for capital and operations resulting in significant fund 
balances. There is no net difference to the budget due to the proposed changes, only a change in 
allocation methodology.  
 

Requested Action: 
The Mayor will call for a public hearing and allow comments from the public. If the City Council is ready 
to approve the attached ordinance, a City Councilor would make the following motion: 
 
“I move to approve Ordinance 2023-04 for the first reading by title only.”  
 
City Council Discretion second motion: City Council may make the following motion: 
 
“I move to approve Ordinance 2023-04 for the second reading by title only.”  
 

Alternatives: 
The City Council may choose not to make an amendment and the allocation for the Transient Room Tax 
collected would stay the same.   

 
 



 
 

Attachments: 

1. Ordinance 2023-04 
 



Ord. No. 2023-04 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF 
THE SEASIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING TRANSIENT ROOM TAX 

 
THE CITY OF SEASIDE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amend Chapter 32 of the Seaside Code of Ordinances to read: 
 
32.08 PENALTIES AND INTEREST 

(A) Original delinquency. Any operator who has not been granted an extension of time for 
remittance of tax due, and who fails to remit any tax imposed by this subchapter prior to delinquency, 
shall pay 10% of the amount of the tax due in addition to the amount of the tax. 

(B) Continued delinquency. Any operator who has not been granted an extension of time for 
remittance of tax due, and who failed to pay any delinquent remittance on or before a period of 30 days 
following the date on which the remittance first became delinquent, shall pay a second delinquency 
penalty of 15 % of the amount of the tax due plus the amount of the tax and the 10% penalty first 
imposed. 

(C) Fraud. If the Tax Administrator determines that the nonpayment of any remittance due under this 
subchapter is due to fraud or intent to evade the provisions thereof, a penalty of 25 % of the amount of the 
tax shall be added thereto in addition to the penalties stated in divisions (A) and (B) of this section. 

(D) Interest. In addition to the penalties imposed, any operator who fails to remit any tax 
imposed by this subchapter shall pay interest at the rate of 1% per month or fraction thereof without 
proration for portions of a month, on the amount of the tax due, exclusive of penalties, from the date 
on which the remittance first became delinquent until paid. 

(E) Penalties merged with tax. Every penalty imposed and such interest as accrues under the 
provisions of this section shall be merged with and become a part of the tax herein required to be 
paid. 

(F) Petition for waiver. Any operator who fails to remit the tax herein levied within the time 
herein stated shall pay the penalties herein stated; provided, however, the operator may petition the tax 
administrator for waiver and refund of the penalty or any portion thereof; and the tax administrator may, 
if a good and sufficient reason is shown, waive and direct a refund of the penalty or any portion 
thereof.  

(G) Fees.  Any operator who fails to remit taxes and penalties owed under this chapter and 
who has a judgement decided against them in any legal venue shall be responsible for attorneys’ 
fees and associated costs incurred by the City of Seaside.   

 
32.15 ADMINISTRATION. 
 
 (A) The Tax Administrator shall prioritize the distribution of the transient room tax as follows: 
    

 (1)  The Tax Administrator shall assure the satisfaction of all debt requirements of the 
Convention Center 

(2)  The Tax Administrator shall distribute the transient room tax collected from vacation rentals 
to the General Fund. 



Ord. No. 2023-04 2 
 

(3)  The Tax Administrator shall distribute allocate all room tax (except vacation rental) as 
follows: to the Tourism Activity Fund, and distribute to other City funds based on the 
operational need of the individual funds and in compliance with State requirements.  

(a)  Sixteen and eight hundredths percent (16.08%) will be allocated to promote and 
advertise the City through the City Tourism Advisory Committee, and to operate the Seaside Visitors 
Bureau as designated by the City Council; 

(b)  Fifteen and twelve hundredths percent (15.12%) will be allocated to the Public Safety 
Fund for the general operation of Police, Fire, Lifeguards, and the Municipal Court (0.8% is dedicated to 
the Lifeguard program); 

(c)  Fifty-six and eight tenths percent (56.80%) will be allocated to the Convention Center 
Fund, first for payment of outstanding debt requirements, second for maintaining, upgrading, and 
expansion of the Convention Center building, properties, and equipment, and finally for the general 
operation of the Convention Center; 

(d)  Four and eight hundredths percent (4.08%) will be allocated to the Convention Center 
Capital Improvement Fund for the maintenance, upgrading, and expansion of the Convention Center 
building, properties, and equipment; 

(e)  Two and thirty-two hundredths percent (2.32%) will be allocated to the Capital 
Improvement & Maintenance Fund (expenditures will be made with City Council approval); 

(f)  Two and forty-eight hundredths percent (2.48%) will be allocated to the Public Works 
Fund to be used for the maintenance and operation of tourist related facilities; 

(g)  One and ninety-two hundredths percent (1.92%) will be allocated to the Prom 
Improvement Fund to be used for the maintenance, reconstruction, and expansion of the Prom system; 

(h)  One and two tenths percent (1.20%) will be allocated to the Emergency Readiness 
Fund to be used for emergency preparedness education and supplies for the general population (both full 
time and seasonal). 

SECTION 2.  The City of Seaside may phase in the room tax increase as required.  
 
SECTION 23.  The amendments in Ordinance No. 2023-04 will become effective 30 days following the 
final approval and adoption.  
 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this       day of                       , 2023, by the 
following roll call vote: 
 
 YEAS:          
 NAYS:       
 ABSTAIN:    
 ABSENT:      
 
SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this        day of                       , 2023. 
 
 
              
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 
Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author: Spencer Kyle, City Manager 
Department:  City Manager 
Subject: Comment On Changes To National Flood Insurance 

Program In Oregon 
Type of Item: Approval 

Introduction: 
FEMA is seeking comments on proposed changes to the National Flood Insurance Program. FEMA has 
extended the comment period through June 26, 2023. City staff proposes that the City of Seaside make 
a formal comment to support the previously submitted and attached comment by Clatsop County.  
 

Background: 
The following Background and Department Review information was taken from documents created by 
Tillamook County and Van Ness Feldman, LLP.  

 
NFIP Background 

 Congress adopted the National Flood Insurance Act in 1968 

 Intended to defray federal expenditures on flood recovery and to reduce future flood damages 

 Grand Bargain: Congress will make flood insurance available in communities that adopt 
development restrictions at least as stringent as NFIP minimum standard (44 CFR §60.3) 

 Goal: Reduce hazards to humans and structures from flooding. Not designed to protect habitat 
or species. 

 To participate in the NFIP, local governments are required to adopt flood hazard regulations at 
least as stringent as FEMA minimum standards 

 Mandatory flood insurance purchase requirement for federally-backed mortgages 

 Local communities must participate in the NFIP to qualify for certain disaster relief 

 Property owners must have flood insurance to qualify for disaster relief following flood event 

 Result: Voluntary program effectively rendered mandatory 
 
NFIP and Endangered Species in Oregon 

 Series of lawsuits around the country challenging FEMA’s compliance with the Endangered 
Species Act (ESA) 

 In Oregon, FEMA settled and agreed to consult regarding the effect of the NFIP on threatened 
and endangered species and designated critical habitat 

 National Marine Fisheries Services issued Biological Opinion 

 Concluded that FEMA’s implementation of the NFIP in Oregon was resulting in: 
o Jeopardy to 16 ESA-listed anadromous species and Southern Resident killer whales and; 
o The destruction or adverse modification of designated or proposed critical habitat 

 

Department Review: 
FEMA’s Implementation Plan 

 Imposes a “no net loss or beneficial gain” standard on all floodplain development in 30 Oregon 
counties and cities within those counties 



 
 

  

 

 Plan effectively shifts the burden from FEMA to local jurisdictions to adopt more restrictive 
development standards for floodplain areas 

 Calls for “no net loss” of three floodplain functions: 
o Flood storage -> restricts placement of fill 
o Water quality -> restricts addition of impervious surface 
o Riparian habitat -> restricts removal of vegetation within a 170-foot buffer of rivers and 

streams 

 Translates to significant reductions in development capacity for floodplain properties 

 Applies to most agricultural activities other than regular crop harvest (applies if activity involves 
filling or grading) 

 Compliance with these new standards will be a condition of continued participation in the NFIP 
 
Examples of limitations 

 Restricts subdivision of land in floodplain 

 Limits development on land in floodplain – e.g., 
o One unit per lot (residential) 
o Limits fill; requires elevation 
o Limits new impervious surface 
o Restricts development within 170-feet of rivers and streams 

 Additional stormwater management requirements, including LID 

 Communities that do not implement FEMA’s floodplain changes will be removed from the NFIP 

 Non-participation in NFIP is not a viable option 
o Forces property owners into default under their federally-backed loans 
o No access to federal disaster funds 

 
More information may be found at https://www.fema.gov/about/organization/region-10/oregon/nfip-
esa-integration  
 
Currently, the City of Seaside does not know the full extent of impact on our community. We do not 
have data on how much land might be affected or how much future housing development may be 
hindered. Staff currently understand that there are approximately 650 properties within the City that 
receive NFIP insurance. These owners would see significant increases in insurance rates should the City 
no longer enforce the FEMA standards.  
 

Budget Impact: 
There is no budget impact to submitting a comment. However, if the FEMA plan is implemented, the 
City will see significant increases in development costs.  
 

Requested Action: 
If a Councilor is ready to make a motion, they would state: 
 
“I move to approve the letter supporting Clatsop County’s comment to FEMA regarding changes to the 
National Flood Insurance Program.” 
 

Alternatives: 
The City Council may make changes to the letter or choose not to submit a comment.  
 

https://www.fema.gov/about/organization/region-10/oregon/nfip-esa-integration
https://www.fema.gov/about/organization/region-10/oregon/nfip-esa-integration


 
 

  

 

Attachments: 

1. City of Seaside letter of support 
2. Clatsop County formal comment letter 



                                 

 

CITY OF SEASIDE 
                                        
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
June 12, 2023  
 
Federal Emergency Management Agency 
 
Dear FEMA Staff, 
 
On behalf of the Seaside City Council, this letter serves as support for the attached comment submitted by 
Clatsop County regarding the changes to the National Flood Insurance Program in Oregon. We have 
reviewed the letter prepared by Clatsop County and fully support the findings and requests contained 
therein. 
 
Specifically, we want to reiterate and emphasize the significant consequences the proposed regulations 
may have on our community. One of the critical issues for our community is the need for more housing—
specifically workforce housing. We believe that the proposed plan could significantly curtain future housing 
development disparately affecting our lower income community and working families.  
 
The City of Seaside has significant concerns regarding the implementation plan as currently drafted. 
It is likely to generate substantial financial expenditures and draw on already maximized staff capacities, 
costs that will primarily be borne by local governments with limited technical and financial assistance from 
state or federal agencies. The likelihood of increased litigation will impact jurisdictions’ fiscal capacity and 
increase development costs for property owners. While needing to increase and facilitate construction of 
housing, the proposed implementation plan appears to drastically limit new development, possibly putting 
local governments out of compliance with other state-mandated requirements.  
 
As currently drafted, the City of Seaside is opposed to the implementation plan. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Steve Wright, Mayor 



Clatsop County 
Board of Commissioners 

 

800 Exchange St., Suite 410 
Astoria, OR 97103 

(503) 325-1000 / (503) 325-8325 fax 
www.clatsopcounty.gov 

April 11, 2023   
 
Federal Emergency Management Agency 
 
RE: DOCKET ID # FEMA-2023-0007 
 FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) 
 
Dear FEMA Staff: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the above-referenced item.  Clatsop 
County has completed its review and has several significant concerns and questions regarding 
the proposed Enviornmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the implementation of the plan for 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) – Endangered Species Act (ESA) Integration in 
Oregon: 
 

• While it appears that the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) 
has hosted stakeholder meetings, it does not appear that local elected officials were 
specifically sought out for input. It is elected officials and not staff that are directly 
responsible to their constituents and this would appear to be a flaw in the outreach 
component of this scoping process. 

• What steps are being taken to limit development in areas that are outside the Special 
Flood Hazard Area, but which are now experiencing flooding due to climate change, sea 
level rise or other causes?  How will impacts to ESA-listed species and critical habitats 
be accounted for in the implementation plan? 

• The four paths identified in the Implementation Plan have not been fully-developed, 
leaving local governments to provide comments on items they have not been produced, 
reviewed or vetted for potential implementation costs.  Specifically: 

o A model ordinance has not yet been developed or provided for public comment 
and review.  Without this opportunity, local governments are unable to fully know 
the potential impacts of the implementing the plan nor the costs associated with 
those implementation measures. 

o In order to implement paths 3 or 4 of the draft implementation plan, it appears 
that local jurisdictions would need to expend significant funds to obtain technical 
experitise to complete either a compliance plan or a habitat conservation plan.  
These unknown costs would likely force small and/or rural local governments into 
“choosing” either path 1 or path 2.  This is not truly a choice. 

• Under the current schedule, implementation may begin to be required as early as 2025. 
Implementation will also potentially conincide with implementation of the Oregon 
Housing Needs Analysis and requirements for communities to produce a specific 
number of housing units each year or face potential penalties.  Some counties will also 
be facing revenue reductions to to implementation of the Oregon Department of 
Forestry’s Habitat Conservation Plan.  No efforts have been taken to coordinate these 
three very significant state/federal actions or analysis done to determine the cumulative 
fiscal impacts on these local governments.  This trifecta of regulation will have extremely 
significant negative potential impacts, particularly to small and/or rural local 
governments. 



Board of Clatsop County Commissioners 
FEMA R10-ESA Comments  
April 11, 2023 
Page 2 
 

For project information and updates, visit us on the web! 
www.co.clatsop.or.us/landuse     |      www.facebook.com/ClatsopCD 

• The proposed reporting requirements for local communities will require additional staff 
time, constituting an unfunded mandate.  The reporting requirements proposed in RPA 
Element 5 of the implementation plan would require local governments to either collect 
and analyze data that most staff members are not trained to do (ex: identify the amount 
of compensatory storage measured by volume and area; the change in timing, velocity 
or peak flows of stormwater runoff due to new impervious surfaces, etc..).  Conversely, 
local governments could require applicants to provide this analysis, which will 
significantly increase development costs and times. Additionally, because the final 
reporting tool has not been developed or tested, it is unsure how long it will take local 
government staff to compile and input the required information, potentially diverting staff 
resources from other state-mandates such as housing. 

• The implementation plan does not clearly identify what entity determines the quantity 
and quality of mitigation required.   

• FEMA’s current shift towards a single-phased full implementation approach, places 
smaller and rural communities at a disadvantage. Larger communities, which have 
access to more resources, will face fewer potential penalities during implementation.  
Smaller communities, which are often already understaffed, will now need to provide 
additional training and reallocate scarce resources.  Phased implementation would 
provide smaller jurisdictions with additional time to prepare for implementation and to 
benefit from resolution of unforeseen issues that larger jurisdiction might encounter if the 
plan were phased. 

• It is unclear from the implementation plan whether a community can repeal higher 
regulatory standards once they have been adopted.  Does the implementation allow 
jurisdictions to eliminate higher standards and adopt only the minimum standards 
required? 

• Implementation of the plan will likely result in “takings” claims by local property owners, 
as the proposed plan will severely restrict or completely prohibit development in the 
Special Flood Hazard Area.  This will create additional legal costs for both local 
governments and property owners.  To date, no state or federal funding or assistance 
has been proposed to assist local governments with those potential future lawsuits. 

• The implementation plan exempts forest and agricultural practices, providing they do not 
involve “filling, grading, or construction of levees or structures.” Agricultural activities in 
Clatsop County will almost always require some level of fill or grading in order to prepare 
fields for planting. The current implementation plan would significantly increase 
agricultural costs or prohibit agricultural activities. 

• It is unclear whether the implementation plan requirements would take precedence over 
the requirements of Oregon’s Forest Practices Act.  Commercial timber activities are not 
regulated or permitted by local governments.  However, some activities such as road 
construction would require grading or filling.  Would those activities now be prohibited 
under the draft implementation plan? 

• The list of exemptions is extremely vague.  For example, what constitutes “gardening”?  
How is this activity different than “agriculture”?  Is it simply the scale of the activitiy?  If 
so, what is the threshold between “gardening” and “agriculture”?  What is a homeowner 
wants to install a raised garden bed? Would that still be exempt or will local governments 
be required to issue permits for those types of activities? 

• Will any sort of variance process or appeal process be developed to provide relief from 
property owners who may lose all ability to develop their properties when the plan is 
implemented? If local governments are required to process variance requests, this will 
also require additional staff resources and will also increase development costs. 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/landuse/page/comprehensive-plan-update
file:///C:/Users/ghenrikson/Desktop/www.facebook.com/ClatsopCD


Board of Clatsop County Commissioners 
FEMA R10-ESA Comments  
April 11, 2023 
Page 3 
 

For project information and updates, visit us on the web! 
www.co.clatsop.or.us/landuse     |      www.facebook.com/ClatsopCD 

• Many of the proposed mitigation or implementation measures that are encouraged in the 
plan would also require local governments to expend significant monetary or staff 
resources to develop stormwater regulations, design manuals, etc. It is unclear from 
recent public meetings with technical or financial assistance would be made available to 
small and rural jurisdictions that do not have the capacity to develop such tools. 

• The Buildout Analysis discussion in Appendix C of the implementation plan appears to 
exclude areas outside incorporated boundaries and urban growth boundaries. It is 
unclear whether counties are to perform their own analyses or whether an assumption 
has been made that no development would occur in areas outside UGBs. 

• How are potential impacts from climate change and/or sea level rise being factored into 
FEMA’s implementation plan?   
 

Clatsop County has significant concerns regarding the Implementation Plan as currently drafted. 
It is likely to generate substantial financial expenditures and draw on already maximized staff 
capacities - costs that will primarily be borne by local governments with limited technical and 
financial assistance from state or federal agencies.  The likelihood of increased litigation will 
impact jurisdictions’ fiscal capacity and increase development costs for property owners.  At a 
time when rural jurisdictions are being faced with potential revenue reductions due to ODF’s 
Habitat Conservation Plan, while also being required to increase and facilite construction of 
needed housing, the proposed Implementation Plan would appear to drastically limit new 
development, possibly putting local governments out of compliance with other state-mandated 
requirements.  As currently drafted, Clatsop County is opposed to the above-referenced 
implementation plan. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Mark Kujala, Board Chair 
Clatsop County Board of Commissioners 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/landuse/page/comprehensive-plan-update
file:///C:/Users/ghenrikson/Desktop/www.facebook.com/ClatsopCD


____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page | 1  
 

Staff Report – City Council  
 

Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Author:  Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 
Department:   Community Development 
Subject: 21st Ave Right of Way  
Type of Item:  License Agreement 

 

Introduction: 

Cornet Properties LLC. Is seeking a license agreement to utilize the 21st Ave right of way for a 
transitional housing project.  

Background: 

Clatsop Community Action (CCA) is developing an emergency shelter transitional housing 
facility at 2051 N. Roosevelt Dr. The property is accessed through a private road and across an 
undeveloped public right of way (21st Ave). The property owner, Cornet Properties LLC., needs a 
license agreement in order to develop a portion of the 21st Ave. right of way for access to the 
site.  

Department Review: 

The 21st Ave. public right of way is directly adjacent to a private road. The private road has a 
public access easement that was granted to the City of Seaside in 2009. This easement allows 
the public to use a portion of the private road for access. Public access on the private road 
extinguishes the need for the city to develop 21st Ave. in the future; however, Coronet 
Properties LLC. needs an agreement from the City to cross the 21st Ave. right of way to access 
their property.  

  

The exhibit below shows the proposed locations of the vehicular and pedestrian crossing areas 
on the 21st Ave. right of way. Entering into a licensing agreement will allow the property owner 
and their tenant the ability to improve and surface the right of way crossings and develop their 
property.  

 



Page | 2  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The property owner is requesting an expedited review of this request as they are close to 
obtaining permits to begin the development. The property owner will need to provide a legal 
description for the portion(s) of the 21st Ave. right of way they would like to utilize for their 
access. The license agreement cannot be drafted until the legal description is provided to the 
City by the owner. The final license agreement will be subject to the City Manager’s and City 
Attorney’s final approval.  

Budget Impact:  

There is no impact to the budget.  

Requested Action: 

Staff is requesting the City Council discuss the applicant/property owner’s request. The City 
Council may choose to approve the request and direct staff to draft a license agreement 
between the City and Cornet Properties LLC. To be reviewed by the City Attorney and signed by 
the City Manager and the property owner or owner’s representative.  

A councilor may make the following motion: 

“I move to approve the license agreement between the City of Seaside and Cornet 
Properties LLC. For access and improvements within the 21st Ave. right of way pending 
the City Manager and City Attorney’s final review and approval. “ 

Staff and/or Key Contacts: 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 



kjordan
Line

kjordan
Line

kjordan
Line






	City Council Agenda June 12, 2023
	Proclamations
	City Council Draft Meeting Minutes May 22, 2023
	Seaside Library Annual Report 2021-2022
	Liquor License Application Restaurante Ramos
	Rural Fire District Intergovernmental Agreement
	Public Hearing Resolution 4018 State Revenue Sharing
	Bid COHO Creek Culvert Proposals 
	Resolution 4019 Ambulance Service Fees
	Resolution 4020 Creation of Fire Levy Fund
	Resolution 4021 Creation of Tourism Activities Fund
	Public Hearing Ordinance 2023-04 Transient Room Tax
	National Flood Insurance - Comment on Changes
	Licensing Agreement Portion of 21st Avenue Right of Way
	Public Comment Submission - Rick Bowers

